Illinois State University

## ISU ReD: Research and eData

Academic Senate Minutes

Academic Senate

3-8-2023

## Senate Meeting, March 8, 2023

Academic Senate Illinois State University

Follow this and additional works at: https://ir.library.illinoisstate.edu/senateminutes

#### **Recommended Citation**

Academic Senate, "Senate Meeting, March 8, 2023" (2023). *Academic Senate Minutes*. 1317. https://ir.library.illinoisstate.edu/senateminutes/1317

This Article is brought to you for free and open access by the Academic Senate at ISU ReD: Research and eData. It has been accepted for inclusion in Academic Senate Minutes by an authorized administrator of ISU ReD: Research and eData. For more information, please contact ISUReD@ilstu.edu.

## Academic Senate Meeting Minutes Wednesday, March 8, 2023 Approved

## Call to Order

Academic Senate chairperson Martha Callison Horst called the meeting to order.

## Roll Call

Academic Senate secretary Dimitrios Nikolaou called the roll and declared a quorum.

# Public Comment: All speakers must sign in with the Senate Secretary prior to the start of the meeting.

None.

## Approval of the Academic Senate minutes of February 8, 2023.

Motion by Senator Cline, seconded by Senator Duffy, to approve the minutes. The motion was approved.

## Chairperson's Remarks

Senator Horst: Thank you to our brand-new Provost, who already supplied us with refreshments for the evening. She is getting on our good side. We have a long agenda tonight. The Executive Committee has requested that all administrators keep their remarks brief, and we do have an established hard stop time of 9:30 p.m. that was established by the Executive Committee.

I want to talk about some searches happening in the Provost's office. One of them is the Associate VP for Academic Administration. Some of the responsibilities of this position include ASPT work with the URC, ASPT issues in general, and ex-officio committee work on the Rules Committee. The interviews will occur the week of March 20-24<sup>th</sup>. The Executive Committee has requested a special session for this search, for the shared governance representatives. I encourage all Senators and particularly faculty senators who attend this special shared governance search or one of the other opportunities to meet the candidates.

I want to welcome Senator Setnan for the College of Business.

In addition to several bylaws and policy items this evening, I do want to note that we have a proposal to create a new School of Creative Technologies. This is the first such proposal for our institution in at least 20 years. I am very proud that we are at an institution that is evolving and growing in new areas, such as Creative Technologies and Cyber Security. So, it's a great thing that we have a proposal to create something new this evening.

Committee chairs, I want to remind you that the deadline for submission of materials to the executive Committee agenda is noon on Thursday. It is great to see all the material coming out of the committees. The Executive Committee will do it's best to manage the Senate's time and prioritize the items. But please do respect this timeline, and the deadline of noon on Thursday, so that we can make everything ready for the Executive Committee meeting.

### Student Body President's Remarks

Senator Walsh: Hello, all. I hope you are having a great day so far. First, I would like to wish all the women of Illinois State University a happy International Women's Day. As someone with a great mother and three older sisters, I am extremely grateful for the impact they have made in my life.

Next, yesterday some members of SGA and our Emerging Leader Program traveled to the state capital to practice lobbying at our annual Lobby. At this event our members spoke with state officials about a variety of topics that would affect our student body and campus community. We thank our state officials for working with us, and we are looking forward to next year already.

SGA is very excited to announce that the new iced coffee machines we assisted in purchasing have been implemented within both dining halls. According to the word on the street, the students are loving it, so we're grateful for that.

Finally, SGA will be hosting a University Resource Awareness Fair March 22 from 11:00-1:00p.m. This will take place in the Bone Student Center within the Student Involvement Center. At this event, many different areas on campus will be there to offer their resources to students such as Student Counseling Services, Career Services, ISU PD with Pawficer Sage making an appearance, and other areas. I hope you will share this information with any students you come in contact with.

#### Administrators' Remarks:

## • Interim President Aondover Tarhule-Excused

Senator Horst: I have a message from Interim President Aondover Tarhule. He is in a meeting in Molin and then he is heading to New York City for the ATI meeting to which Illinois State University has been invited for the first time. So, he will not be able to attend this evening. But we do have an update on policy 1.2 Anti-Harassment and Non-Discrimination Policy from Our Title IX Coordinator Debora Piovvezan Barbosa Avelino.

• Update on Policy <u>1.2 Anti-Harassment and Non-Discrimination Policy</u>-Crown Act changes (Interim Director of Equal Opportunity and Access, and Title IX Coordinator Debora Piovvezan Barbosa Avelino)

Ms. Avelino: The update to policy 1.2 is due to legislative change. So, there has been a change to the definition of race within the Illinois Human Rights Act to include traits associated with race, when we consider discrimination analysis based on race. So, we included a footnote in our policy 1.2 to reflet the language in the statute and clarify that when looking into race discrimination or harassment based on race, we will also consider traits associated with race such as hairstyles. So, the language in policy 1.2 is based on the language of the new definition in the Illinois Human Rights Act.

• Acting Provost Ani Yazedjian

Acting Provost Yazedjian: I'd like to start by keeping my remarks brief and saying that today we had our last of three dean candidates for the College of Applied Science and Technology on campus. I thank the search committee and everyone who participated in that effort.

And also, just reiterate what Chairperson Horst said, we will have four candidates on campus for the AVP for Academic Administration. Please attend the sessions and do submit your feedback forms.

As another update, the Engineering curriculum proposals are making their way, and have made their way, to the University Curriculum Committee. We anticipate that the three program proposals for degrees in General Engineering, Electrical Engineering, and Mechanical Engineering will make it to the Senate floor for approval, hopefully, sometime in April. After anticipated approval by the Senate and the Board of Trustees, then we hope to submit three program proposals to the Illinois Board of Higher Education in the summer, so that we can begin recruiting prospective students.

Finally, I'll just close by saying that I indicate my full support for the CTK proposal that you will be hearing about this evening. Interim President Tarhule, Vice President Stephens, and I have met on different occasions with the college leadership, and we stand behind the plan that you will hear about this evening, just as the faculty in the program and the College Council.

Senator Horst: The curricular items for the College of Engineering will be sent to the Senate as a Consent Agenda item, as all the curriculum items are. So, if you would like it to be pulled from the Consent Agenda you will have a ten-day window to do that. I just want to remind everyone that that will follow the normal process.

• Vice President for Student Affairs Levester Johnson- Excused

## • Vice President for Finance and Planning Dan Stephens

Senator Stephens: Each year we're challenged by changing temperatures from the winter to spring and March and April represent our shoulder months when the temperature has a very inconsistent band between cold, hot, and mild. The efforts that our facilities team has to do in order to make the switch over, there's quite a bit of planning effort that has to be done. One of the challenges that we do face is trying to begin to figure out what point in time do we make the switch over from heat to AC. Historically, what we've used in the past is a temperature gauge of around 65 degrees, and we look at the weather patterns for when we believe there's a consistent level of temperature at or above 65 degrees. Anything below 65, we error on the side of making sure we have heat available. So, we are about to begin that process. It will take a few weeks. My guess is we will switch over sometime in later March, early April. So, there will be some days, depending on how the weather plays out, that it may be warmer in your building than you may like. But once we complete that process, we'll try to complete it as soon as we can.

Consent Agenda: (All items under the Consent Agenda are considered to be routine in nature and will be enacted by one motion. There will be no separate discussion of these items.)

• English: Literary and Cultural Studies Sequence

Motion by Senator Mainieri, seconded by Senator Nikolaou, to approve the consent agenda item. The motion was unanimously approved.

## Action Item:

## From Administrative Affairs and Budget Committee:

02.23.23.07 Policy 1.3.1 Reasonable Accommodation Procedures\_Current Copy 02.23.23.08 Policy 1.3.1 Reasonable Accommodation Procedures\_Mark Up 02.23.23.09 Policy 1.3.1 Reasonable Accommodation Procedures Clean Copy Senator Nikolaou: We saw policy 1.3.1 back on November 9th. During that discussion, the main question was in the policy refers to departments, but the question was what's going to happen, for example, with the Academic Senate. So, if you go on page three of the mark up, under item 6 where it says the Employing Department, now we have added "(and any other department OEOA determines is necessary)." We had a brief discussion today, and instead of saying "department" we are going to say "University entity" because the Senate is not necessarily a unit, it's not a department. So, university entity is going to cover it. And the same change is going to happen on page six, where we add the same language in paragraph 1 where it says, "(and any other department OEOA determines is necessarv)." Instead of department it's going to say, "University entity." And then we also had a recommendation from Exec, for Senator Cline and Senator Mainieri, for the third paragraph from the beginning to rephrase it so that it is a bit more clear. The content remains the same. I just checked with the interim Director of OEOA that the changes are okay. So, the sentence current says, "To review a request for a reasonable accommodation, OEOA will review information about the nature of the request and medical documentation." Now, it's going to read, "OEOA will review requests for reasonable accommodations, taking into account the nature of the request and medical recommendation." So, it's the same content, just to eliminate the review repetition.

Motion by Senate Nikolaou, on behalf of the Administrative Affairs and Budget Committee, to approve policy 1.3.1 Reasonable Accommodation Procedures for Employees or Job Applicants. The motion was unanimously approved, as amended.

## Information Items:

From Executive Committee: 02.22.23.01 Creative Technologies School proposal 02.22.23.02 CTK Budget Presentation 02.22.23.03 FIF CTK Senator Horst: This is coming straight from the Execut

Senator Horst: This is coming straight from the Executive Committee. The Executive Committee thought it would be appropriate for this item to follow the same path as the College of Engineering. This evening we have Dean Jean Miller, for the Wonsook Kim College of Fine Arts, and she has several other support staff and faculty and all kinds of people from the college to present this proposal. So, I will turn it over to Dean Miller.

Dean Miller: That's quite a surprise to see everyone. That's for being here. I'm Jean Miller, Dean of the Wonsook Kim College of Fine Arts and participating in this presentation tonight with me is Janet Tulley, Assistant Dean for Enrollment and Student Services. And Sara Semonis is seated next to me, who is the college's Associate Dean for Research and Planning. I also Rose Marshack who is the Director of Creative Technologies, and former director Aaron Paolucci. And I see students. So, thank you so much for being here.

The Wonsook Kim College of Fine Arts requests that the Creative Technologies program be approved to be a School of Creative Technologies. The School of Creative Technologies, we call it CTK, will align with the structure with the existing schools in the college, which are the School of Music, School of Theatre and Dance, and the Wonsook Kim School of Art. Creative Technologies is a growing program within the Wonsook Kim College of Fine Arts. It originated 20 years ago as an interdisciplinary program primarily serving Music, Theatre, Dance, and Art students. But since then, Creative Technologies has evolved into a program that also provides opportunities for teaching and creative scholarship with other ISU departments on campus, such as ESport, Technology, Nursing, Speech Language Pathology, Family and Consumer Sciences, Admissions, Cadi School, Marketing, and many more. It's become a thriving program attracting prospective transfer and continuing students. Creative Technologies has been successful in recruiting underrepresented faculty and students as well as international students.

The program offers two undergraduate degrees with three sequences, an accelerated master's degree, and a traditional master's degree. The sequences available to undergraduate students include a very popular game design sequence, audio and music production, and interdisciplinary technologies. This includes mobile and web apps, computer programing, video and motion graphics, AR, VR, UI, UX, and sound design, and a sequence in XR is forthcoming. A minor in game design is available to students majoring in computer science. The audio and music production sequence, which the first class will be enrolled in FY23, is anticipated to attract a diverse student population since its curriculum is not exclusively based upon a specific musical training, such as in the School of Music, or a singular musical music genre. This will be very popular. CTK curriculum has increased from 8 offerings in 1999 to 34 undergraduate and 24 graduate level courses today. Students graduating with a major in Creative Technologies, which has a designated sip code are well prepared for a career opportunity upon graduation. Employment after graduation is nearly 100% within the field. I'm sure students are happy to hear that. So, right now, Janet is going to show a brief power point, explaining the proposal. We promise it will be brief.

Dr. Tully: I do promise it will be brief, it's just seven slides. We start here with Professor of Music, Roy Magnuson, and he's showing his VR skills with introductory (technical difficulties). You can imagine in your mind a man wearing VR lenses, teaching Introductory Conducting, and it is our Professor of Music Roy Magnuson. Then I will talk about the Creative Technologies historic enrollment, as you can see on the screen, it's been robust. It begins in 2005 on the far-left hand of the screen through the present day of 2022 on the far right-hand of the screen. The bright green represents our graduate students, and the blue is our undergraduate population, with that minor blip for that thing we call the pandemic. But we've had great growth.

Current faculty and course count, I do want to point out from 2016 to 2022 that we've had significant, almost twice as numbered, the courses that were offered. This really is astronomical if you think about it. But let me tell you why this is. What happened is, there was a request to take courses that are topical to be actual courses instead of variable. So, it used to be that we were teaching 380 courses, select topics. And now we've made them all their own course with their own course name and their own course number, which looks like we really added a ton of courses. We really didn't add a ton of courses, we merely took the decimalized numbers and added them to real course numbers since we were offering them regularly anyway.

What does this mean? What are we predicting? Fall 2022 we had an enrollment of 203 students. We predict by 2027 we will grow to 403 students, which is 200 simple math right. We are feeling rather conservative about the growth here. That it may be 200. But we suspect it may be more than that.

Proposed financial implication. So, as part of the proposal which would be for curricular reasons, Financial Implication is required as does the IBHE. We put this in five years, with the yellow being the initial ask, the green being a continuing ask. So, as you can see, for commodities we are asking in year two, FY26 for \$21,000. That will continue through year three year four, etc. You can see as that goes down the chart, the contractual, we're looking at \$20,000 in year four. Equipment \$33,000 in year three. Etc. So, I'm not going to really hammer that home, you can read what's on the screen, but I do want to draw your attention to is additional faculty that we will be requesting through the regular request process. And then a digital design classroom. With the great number of students and the high technical necessity, we will need an additional classroom. And it is a digital design classroom with high powered technology and peripheral in there to match. That comes at the price tag of \$230,000, which is today's price tag. Who knows what that would be in FY29. For the grand total of \$772,000 for the growth of the 200 students that we are predicting.

So, we had a meeting with Dr. Yazedjian and Dr. Tarhule back in December. At that point they provided us figures about the revenue per student would be \$7,300. The anticipated growth, or the number of students we predict growth of is 200 students that will growth. For revenue or anticipated revenue of \$1.46 million. The projected cost to Academic Affairs per student is just .5, and again these were figures that were provided to us by Dr. Tarhule, and Dan Stephens had conversations about it, as well as Dr. Yazedjian. Our net income for this proposal is \$730,000.

I spoke just briefly about the spaces. I wanted to show a most contemporary and recent space that opened this semester just eight weeks ago. This is our audio music production space, brand new, in the basement of the Center for Visual Arts. We're incredibly excited by it. Rick Valentin, on the Senate is the one that took this image. We do have more recent images where we have students that are acting in this space, but this came at the time that we were putting it together. So, we are very excited about this space, and thankful for all the support that you can give. Thank you.

Senator Samhan: What does the K stand for in CTK, Creative Technologies?

Dr. Tulley: Part of Technologies, I'm assuming. I was not part of the naming. That's interesting. Before it was Creative Technologies it was Arts Technologies, and it was ATK. So, this predates us a little bit. I think it's part of the technology.

Senator Samhan: there's no K in Technology though.

Dr. Tulley: Yeah.

Acting Provost Yazedjian: I can provide a little bit more addition to that. You have those three letters, and it's basically based on what's available, and K was available.

Senator Nikolaou: That's more of a clarification question from the financial implications form. When discussing the faculty, in one of the sentences it says it is anticipated that the faculty teaching primarily in CTK currently will move the tenure home to CTK. Can you tell us a little bit about how the tenure line faculty is going to work? Is it that the nine-tenured faculty, is it going to be similar to the college of Engineering where funding came from an outside source and then it was added to the AIF? Is it going to be from the current AIF, that we are going to reserve nine positions for the CTK? And then let's say someone from Music says I want to move to CTK, will Music automatically get a line approved because they are removed from them? So, if you can talk a little bit about the faculty hiring is going to work.

Dean Miller: Sure. This is something we discussed for a couple of years. Most of the existing faculty now have their tenure homes in one of the other schools. I think, Rick, yours is in Music.

Senator Valentin: Yes.

Dean Miller: Aaron is in Theatre, and we have Rose over her in Music, and it goes on and on. There have been a couple of faculty who...several faculty only teach CTK classes but they are still residing in these other schools. We've talked with the faculty and discussed it, and of course most of the CTK faculty who teach primarily in CTK or all in CTK would like to move their tenure home to a School of Creative Technologies. We've talked to the Provost about this and others as well. We've talked with the directors of the schools, because they've been part of this conversation from day one. And I was concerned that by faculty electing to go into a tenure home other than where they presently reside it might diminish service opportunities for that school. It might affect their creative scholarship and it goes on and on. Leaving holes, as you say, in other positions. And would they go back. We would have to reprioritize what we anticipated to be our ask for positions going forward, and so on. The school directors unanimously are supporting this program and don't anticipate the issues to be as serious as one would think for them going forward. Within the Fine Arts there is some flexibility among faculty to go back and forth depending on course and course needs. They're very different disciplines. But still there are a lot of faculty that are kind of in between those layers. So, we don't anticipate coming back and saying we need nine new faculty, or four new faculty in the school of Music, four new faculty in the School of Art, and so forth, because those other faculty have moved to Creative Technologies.

Senator Nikolaou: Thank you. And I want to say that I'm in agreement with creating it as a school. I just wanted some clarification.

Dean Miller: Thank you. We really appreciate that. We're so excited.

Acting Provost Yazedjian: I do want to add one clarification. Unlike the College of Engineering, as Dean Miller said, any positions that come up in the future are part of the regular request cycle. So, it's not going to be taking from one unit to give to another. But as Dean Miller said, many of these faculty said, many of these faculty are already teaching in both of these programs. That will still continue in respect of the locus of tenure and then if there's to be growth, it would be through the regular request cycle.

Senator Horst: I wanted to ask about that, because if you look at these numbers it looks like the numbers of students is on par with what Engineering could do, and that's off of the AIF request. So, did you consider having the two positions not be part of the AIF and just be funded by some other mechanism?

Acting Provost Yazedjian: Senator Stephens can chime in as well, but we do have a memo that was drafted outside of the financial implication form that says if there is net university growth then there would be an infusion into the AIF, right. Because it is possible that there could be growth in CTK but decline in other units. So, that doesn't impact the funding in AIF. But let's say if the enrollment at the university stays as it is and then we have growth in CTK there would be an additional infusion of dollars into AIF. Anything you would add to that?

Senator Stephens: No. You said it perfectly.

Senator Cline: Chairperson Horst, would you accept a motion to move this from Information to Action?

Senator Horst: I have a whole list of questions, so I'm hoping we can ask further questions. I wanted to ask about salary. The number of \$75,000 for the assistant professors that you list. I did some research today and I'm just going to note that there are seven full professors in the School of Music (this is 2021) that are at \$75,000 or less. And I had 12 associate professors who are below \$75,000. So, is there going to be some sort of equity in the Wonsook Kim College of Fine Arts to make the salaries on par with the assistant professors are going to get?

Dean Miller: This is a conversation that's occurring in the Provost and Presidents office.

#### Senator Horst: Thank you.

Motion by Senator Cline, seconded by Senator Mainieri, to move from information to action. The motion was unanimously approved.

Senator Horst: I'm just going to say that I'm thrilled that we are at a university that is growing and expanding. This program has growing and expanding for quite some time. It's on the cutting edge of a lot of technologies. My colleagues on the cover. I'm really excited to see this happen.

The Academic Senate unanimously approved the proposal to turn the Creative Technologies program into the School of Creative Technologies.

#### From Rules Committee:

## 02.23.23.16 Memo for Graduate Council Bylaws 02.23.23.17 Graduate School Bylaws\_Current Copy 02.23.23.18 Graduate School Bylaws\_Mark Up 02.23.23.19 Graduate School Bylaws\_Clean Copy

Senator Blum: The first thing is they have broadened their membership in terms of voting so that both associate and full graduate faculty will be able to vote now. That current bylaws focused on thesis and dissertation work. Through their work and revisions, they've kind of expanded definitions, culminating experiences that are throughout the university. The graduate council has a two-tiered membership. So, they have the associate and full graduate faculty status. A new addition this year is three years before you chair a committee. But after talking with the Directors and Chairs they've kind of added a flexibility where departments and schools could have experience based on their own standards to allow that a faculty member could chair those thesis or dissertations. Full time tenure track faculty will move to automatic appointment so that as soon as you start here as an associate status, there's a clarification about an administrator can play a roll in a subcommittee (Equity Diversity and Inclusion) which addresses grad policies regarding EDI, and there was a need to clarify that there was an administrator able to serve on that committee. That was the only place where it was like that. The EDI subcommittee that will address policies and procedures, and review scholarships and rewards, in addition they will develop and coordinate and collaborate professional development toward graduate faculty students regarding EDI. The Executive Committee will review the graduate handbook. So, there's a need to closely monitor department or school graduate handbooks, and the policies, so they've created a specific policy to do that every three years. And there's also a new subcommittee called the Graduate Curriculum Committee. This is part of a greater divide that's going on with the Undergraduate Curriculum Committee. Now, that Graduate Curriculum will go their (it is called the University Curriculum Committee now, but it will be called the undergraduate curriculum committee) now that there will be a Graduate Curriculum Committee that is part of the Graduate Council. Those are the major changes.

Senator Horst: Thank you for that summation. Before we start, is it still the intention that we will have this as an information item and then it will go up for a vote with the Graduate faculty and then come back to us as an action item this year?

Senator Blum: Yes. I met with the Director. There were some editorial comments from the Exec. We went through those. I think those were friendly as far as the Rules Committee was concerned. Depending on how people feel here, I think that's a reasonable possibility.

Senator Horst: Okay. I do want to say to the Senate, speak now or forever hold your peace. Once it goes for a vote with the entire Graduate faculty and then comes back as an action item, we've had our say.

I have a question about section 3, the membership criteria for graduate faculty, one of them is actively served on master thesis and/or doctoral dissertations as a committee member or supervised non-thesis dissertations accumulating experiences/exit options of a graduate program in the last three years. Is this to get your application accepted? So, for instance, if I'm a faculty member and do lots of research, and I'm the chair of the thesis committee, and then I become a department chair, and I do no graduate work for ten years. Am I still a full graduate faculty?

Dr. Selkow: Once you receive full graduate faculty status that stays with you. And when you retire as a faculty member you keep your status as an emeriti faculty.

Senator Nikolaou: On that same section there was a clarification question on the paragraph after A.B. for the associate, where it talks about when the additional requirements reviewed, because the second sentence says that those requirements remain in effect until or unless the department submits a change, but then in the last sentence it says they need to be reviewed every five years. So, which one is it?

Dr. Selkow: Our Bylaws are reviewed every five years, so we wanted to make sure that if there were changes, even if there weren't changes specifically to the additions that a separate department had, if we make changes to our bylaws, just to make sure that our bylaws still match what the departments were saying.

Senator Horst: Further questions through Article V?

Senator Nikolaou: I have a question. At the very end of Article V, where it says, "The Associate Vice President for Research and Graduate Studies may appoint the Director of the Graduate School to act as a designee for the listed responsibilities." I'm just thinking two years, three years ago when we had a presentation, and also the ISU Constitution, talks about the Dean of Graduate Studies but it seems that we have reverted to talking about a Director of the Graduate School. So, I was wondering what happened to that discussion we had a few years back about the Dean of Graduate Studies? So, where are we with that?

Senator McLauchlan: Provost Yazedjian?

Senator Horst: It's in the Constitution that it's a dean.

Senator McLauchlan: Director Selkow and I are aware what the Constitution says.

Senator Nikolaou: I don't need the response right now. But I was just wondering.

Acting Provost Yazedjian: Thank you because I'm not in the position to provide one.

Director Selkow: Just for some context, in the early 2000s there was a Dean of the Graduate School. The title changed for whatever reason, and ISU Constitution apparently did not change with that title change. Nationally speaking, the title for someone who leads the Graduate School is usually Dean of the Graduate School or an AVP of Graduate Studies. We have had a consulting reporting here that came on campus about five years ago and they did make that recommendation. That is a decision of the Provost and there has been some turnover and transition in that area. So, those conversations are continuing.

Senator Horst: If there are no more questions through Article V, we'll take questions regarding Article VI?

Senator Mainieri: I'm on page six of the mark up, Article VI of the EDI committee. It indicates that the EDI Committee shall consist of eight members, one member from each of the six colleges. Is that intended to be one faculty member from each of the six colleges?

Director Selkow: Yes.

Senator McLauchlan: Keeping in mind the comment that Senator Blum already made that in some college's faculty members are also administrators. Milner is always a bit of a challenge in that regard.

Senator Horst: So, you are defining the faculty member, in some regard...

Senator McLauchlan: Well, we had some issues with faculty members in Milner not being able to serve because it was unclear, because they are also administrators. It's a totally different set of rules. We were trying not to paint ourselves into a corner with faculty members trying to do service in shared governance and not being allowed to serve.

Senator Nikolaou: Follow up on that. So, was Milner supposed to be listed then, because it's not listed in part of the six colleges.

Senator McLauchlan: That's totally fair on that one.

Director Selkow: So, Milner doesn't have a spot on any of our college committees. So, we wanted the EDI Committee to have eight members. We do want each college represented but that would also be a committee to allow a faculty administrator to be on the committee essentially to allow a representative from Milner Library to be on the committee. So, if we need to expand the number to nine, if we were to agree to a friendly amendment.

Senator Nikolaou: And I was just wondering in terms of Senator Mainieri's comment, that if it says faculty and the main question would be about Milner, then it wouldn't be an issue changing it to faculty. But then it depends on when you say other administrators who might serve.

Director Selkow: In my experience, the administrators who are interested in the role have come from a faculty line. So, they are faculty who have moved into deans' offices, or deans' positions, and that was the case with Milner.

Senator Horst: So, your friendly amendment is that they are going to be nine members and you are going to list Milner. And then are you going to keep it as one member from each of the six colleges or are you going to amend it to say faculty?

Director Selkow: We will have eight members of Graduate faculty status, one member from each college, and then we will add a Milner college representative.

Senator Horst: And then right above there, in 14 it says it reports that it reports to the Academic Affairs Committee. I respectfully request that you say Academic Senate, because it is important that everything go through the Senate office and then go to the internal committees.

Senator Nikolaou: On page 11, Section VI.C, I was wondering where it says, "may be elected or appointed," who are the appointed members? Because based on the previous part of the bylaws it was not clear that there are actually any members that are appointed. It seemed that all of them are elected. I don't know if the at large members are the appointed members. And that comes later in the bylaws again.

Director Selkow: We struck it.

Senator Host: Okay. Moving on, any question about the rest of the bylaws?

Senator Nikolaou: Article VII, Section 3. Just for clarification, it talks about two full time graduate students that this is three, right. Because the EDI committee has been added.

Director Selkow: Yes. I've made that correction.

Senator Nikolaou: And then on Article VIII, 1.C., that's the other case where the appointed appears.

Director Selkow: And that's been struck.

Senator Horst: Okay. Any other comments? (Pause) And you have the editorial comments that Exec gave to you. Okay. There is the information item of the Graduate School Bylaws. All faculty should be seeing this soon as something to vote on, and then the Senate will then vote on it as an action item in a couple of meetings from now.

#### From Rules Committee: 02.23.23.23 Article III\_Section 5 Vacancies and Absenses\_Academic Senate Bylaws\_Current Copy 02.23.23.24 Article III\_Section 5 Vacancies and Absenses\_Academic Senate Bylaws Mark Up

## 02.23.23.25 Article III\_Section 5 Vacancies and Absenses\_Academic Senate Bylaws\_Clean Copy

Senator Blum: Article III, Section 5 in particular deals with vacancies and absences. First, I'd like to start with the most significant change. In the current version of vacancies and absences, essentially, as long as you're not absent three times in a row, and the absences are excused, you could be absent quite a few Senate meetings. So, the ad hoc committee dealt with this, and then the Rules Committee we examined it and rather than thinking about excused or unexcused absences it was either present or not present. The logic behind that is essentially you are here to represent. Either you are here or not. Many people have good reasons for not being here. You still have to be here. So, it switched the language to basically whether you are present or not. So, we kind of looked at some data from the Senate office about frequency of absences. Essentially, what this will mean is that you can be absent four times. From either Senate, your standing committee, or Faculty Caucus, any one of those, if you are absent the fifth time that would lead to vacating your seat. So, that's probably the biggest change. As you go down further, there is some language about SGA that clarifies that the absent policy in the Senate only applies to only when they are at the Senate. SGA has their own bylaws that deal with their other meetings beyond their Senate meetings. We just made clear that those are different rules, different circumstance, and different meetings. It talks about potential for long term absences and how to notify, encourages to contact the committee chairs. There's language about vacating a seat. It provides that if for some reason you are absent, that the chair can refer it to Exec for review or that someone who's been absent five times can request a review by Exec. If they don't their seat will be vacated. So, there's language changes about Academic Senate. There's an explanation about how SGA student seats are filled or will be filled. It says no more than 50% of student senators shall be filled or a special election should be held. A/P and Civil Service vacancies that are filled according to procedures with A/P/Civil Service Council. Then at the end, it talks about leave and other kind of circumstances that may lead to potential vacancy and how to address them.

Senator Blair: I am looking at Section F and you mentioned that no more than 50% of the student senators shall be so filled, referring to filled by appointment by SGA or a special election shall be held. I was wondering, why is this line here? To my knowledge there is no precedent for any sort of special election of this nature in the SGA Constitution or other bylaws, or in the history of the Academic Senate. I don't believe this has ever happened. So, I was wondering why is this here and is it necessary?

Senator Blum: It's there to allow an opportunity for the seats to just not be constantly filled that are vacant. And that's the rationale behind it.

Senator Horst: I am going to point out that before 2002 the Senate used to look at the elections code of SGA. In 2002 there was a formal agreement that, basically, we will let SGA determine their election procedures. My understanding is the Constitution is approved by the student body in some way. There's a vote.

Senator Walsh: The SGA Constitution?

Senator Horst: Yeah.

Senator Walsh: So, if we want to amend it, we need 10% of the student body and then it's ratified.

Senator Horst: Right. So, I think we should probably discuss this at our special Friday meeting. There's a lot of history in terms of the relationship between SGA and the Academic Senate, and how their election procedures occur. Since I've talked to you, I've been reading the history of the SGA (it's been great). I appreciate your comment, Senator Blair. It's a little complicated, so I think we should talk about this on Friday when we talk about SGA issues in general.

Senator Blum: Sounds terrific.

Senator Nikolaou: Can we get a bit of clarification about the absences? Because right now we have 5 regular Academic Senate meetings, or from 5 regular standing internal committee meetings. So, is it about absences from Academic Senate meetings, or Academic Senate meeting nights? For example, if I don't come today. I have two internal committee meetings—assuming we had Faculty Caucus. I would have AABC and the Faculty Caucus. So, I would automatically have two absences? Which means that in my third meeting I'm pretty much out. Is that the intentions?

Senator Blum: Rules Committee discussed this actually tonight, before this meeting. It should say "one of the" and it should be sequenced. We actually worked on Article VI, which has similar language and we put in an example. So, I think both an example with the "one of the" would clarify, essentially, what the intent here is if you are absent from five of your assigned meetings. So, if you were absent from five Rules meetings, that would vacate your seat. If you were absent from five Senate meetings that would vacate your seat. If you were absent from five Senate meetings that would vacate your seat. If you were absent from five Faculty Caucus meetings, that would vacate your seat. But they are not cumulative. They each, effectively, stay in their own lane. I think the way the language is drafted here, particular around the internal committees is a bit confusing. But you could be absent, as you referred to it as Senate night, but those are not cumulative absences. Your assigned committee doesn't also count towards the absences of Senate, nor if you are a member of Faculty Caucus would it count there. But five absences from any one of those would lead to vacancies.

Senator Horst: So, you are saying it's going to read, "from five regular Academic Senate meetings or from one of the five regular standing internal committee meetings." Is that what you are saying?

Senator Blum: Yes. I think what we did in Article VI is we added "one of the" and then we added an example, which I think makes it a lot clearer. We would need to do the same thing here.

Senator Pancrazio: The only question I have has to do with, was there some reason you left out the external committees? The reason I'm asking is because we've had one committee report come to Academic Affairs Committee that mentioned it had difficulty making quorum, part of it was people weren't attending. Wouldn't it be worthwhile to include that as well, so we can actually have a quorum of the people who have been seated.

Senator Blum: In Article VI, which we haven't gotten to yet, there is parallel language to this. So, in Article VI it will include external committees and the absent policy will apply there. But because this is Article III, this is the more general policy. Later, when you get down to the committees, there's another part of the bylaws where it specifies in more detail about the actual committees.

Senator Pancrazio: Thank you.

Senator Mainieri: The language about special elections, I wonder if there needs to be a cut off in the calendar year that past a particular time, right, having people going through the process and doing a special election seems a bit burdensome. So, I wasn't sure if your committee had considered any language in regard to that?

Senator Blum: Right, so maybe January or something like that, maybe at some point the new elections are going to happen.

Senator Myers: I just realized this, in concerns to stuff like the student trustee and if I'm not mistaken, the Student Body President where it would need a special election by the student body for those positions. Would that not count in terms of the student senators, because if I'm not mistaken student trustee and student body president are both positions in which they are senators in Academic Senate. So, would they be counted under this policy?

Senator Blum: If they vacated, is that what you are asking?

Senator Myers: Yeah.

Senator Horst: The trustee is non-voting.

Senator Blum: So, if the student body president was absent, this would present a problem.

Senator Horst: Perhaps we could clarify elected voting members. I had a request from the Senate office because we have to deal with this policy a lot, when people are not here, and they notify us then we can make sure that Dimitrios knows so he doesn't have to call the name during roll call and it makes our life a little easier. The request is to add, "Senators are encouraged to notify committee chairs and the Senate office of all absences."

Senator Blum: Absolutely.

Senator Mainieri: I wonder if you can clarify the difference between Section B and Section H? They seem to all be dealing with long term absences. So, I was wondering why they were separated and if they are for different purposes? My suggestion would be to just delete Section B because it seems to be subsumed under Section H. I just wasn't sure if there was a reason they were separated out.

Senator Blum: Oh, I see what you are saying. Yeah, I think we can probably do that.

Senator Horst: Or you could just have the line Senators are encouraged to notify committee chairs and the senate office of all absences," and then move the other line down.

Senator Blum: Right. Yeah. That sounds good.

Senator Holmes: This may be more for our Friday meeting, but I just checked on what Senator Blair said earlier about the special election. That's not stated within our Constitution or Legislative Bylaws. Basically, anywhere within our governing documents. I don't know if that's really the place of the Academic Senate to mandate that.

Senator Horst: Yeah. Like I said, before 2002 we used to approve your election code but then we signed off on it and said this is SGA's prerogative. So, we might consider that language again.

Senator Blum: I think we can talk on Friday to help clarify some of these items.

Senator Horst: Okay. So, this is part of a big rewrite of the bylaws. As opposed to presenting the whole thing we are hoping to present it piece by piece. This is a discrete piece. We hope to see this as an action item in a couple weeks.

#### From Academic Affairs Committee:

02.28.23.01 Memo Policy 2.1.9 Baccalaureate Degree 02.23.23.01 Policy 2.1.9 Baccalaureate Degree Programs\_Current Copy 03.03.23.01 Policy 2.1.9 Baccalaureate Degree Programs\_Mark Up 03.03.23.02 Policy 2.1.9 Baccalaureate Degree Programs\_Clean Copy

Senator Cline: Academic Affairs Committee brings forward policy 2.1.9 which is a rewrite of the Baccalaureate Degree programs on campus. For this, although you have a memo that explains the nuts and bolts of what's changed, I'm going to yield the floor to Dr. Hurd who's going to talk to you about why we started this adjustment to begin with.

Senator Hurd: This all started with the Student Transfer Achievement Reform Act, I like to affectionally call it the STAR Act. Which put the limit at 120 hours rather than 124, and those of you who have filled out curriculum forms know that our form still says 124. So, once we got into that policy to reduce that to 120, we found several other things that needed to be worked on. I'll give you a summary of that, but you do have a memo on there, because this policy is very confusing once you see all the mark up. Hopefully this will help.

Just to hit the highlights, right now ISU is 42 credit hours for seniors. We put that at 40 because 40 is where HLC is and that's where the other publics are as well. And a couple of people said 40 is not divisible by three. But not all classes are three credit hours. So, we went ahead and put it at 40, and it's okay if people go over that one. We cleaned up some of the references for Teacher Education in there that were more curriculum based than policy based, so we've pulled those out. We cleaned up the process for removal of incompletes to reflect how it is actually done and this is much better for students the way that it is changed. We clarified the AMALI requirement. Courses transferring in from Community Colleges that would satisfy AMALI have an end designation, so we added that to the policy. The IDEAS requirement wasn't in the policy at all, so we put that in there. The professional practice and independent study, there are limits to those courses, 399 also has a limit, so we added it. You can see a note that I asked the committee to talk about 291. That is a teaching assistant course. It was set at three hours at one point and that got dropped off because they thought it was in the catalog. So, we asked if they wanted that put in and they decided no, that we did not need to have a limit on 291. The general education requirements are all in there and we pulled those out because you can refer to the catalog. That way when we have a revision to gen ed we don't have to change the policy. The part that I'm most excited about is the addition of certificates. We cleaned up the definition of major, minor, sequence, concentration, and added in certificate. We can offer certificates at the graduate level, but we've never been able to offer then at the undergraduate level because we don't have a policy for that. And we've had a lot of interest in it. So, we did some background work to see what those hours should be, and certificates should be between 9 and 17 hours, minors are 18 to 36, and then majors are at 120 hours with some IBHE exemptions. So, those are placed in there. And then the very last item is the whole purpose of all of these changes is that STAR Act. So, we say, okay, programs need to be 120 hours. Any program that goes over 120 hours has to get approval from IBHE. When this law went into place, this was first thing I had to do in this job, was to figure out how many programs we have over 120 and get STAR exemption from IBHE on those. There are 27 programs that we have that exemption, and 22 of those 27 are Teacher Education (which will not surprise any of you). So, anything from here on out that goes over 120 will have to get that permission from them. The policy also says that the maximum number of hours in a major should be moved from 82 to 72 and that is to account for the 39 hours in general education, the three hours required in AMALI, IDEAS, and the BS-SMT/LAN requirements. Currently, there are 65 programs over this, but that's fine. Those will stay as they are. We won't make any changes to those but when new programs come through, we'll want to look at that. We know that we will have to make some exceptions to that because accreditation is going to require that. We know that with Engineering coming through we are going to have to get permission from IBHE to go over those 120 hours, and they're definitely going to have more than 82 hours in their major. So, those were the significant changes to that policy.

Senator Horst: If a program has received IBHE approval to go over a certain amount, like Music Ed. Then three years from now they want to make a change, are they going to have to get that approval again, or is that a blanket approval from the moment they received it?

Senator Hurd: It will be a blanket approval unless you add hours to that major. Then we'll have to go back to IBHE for that.

Senator Horst: Okay. Thank you. But if they take two units from here and put it over there, that's okay?

Senator Hurd: Yes. And that's what we hope that they do.

## From Planning and Finance Committee:

# 02.23.23.04 Policy 5.1.21 Advertisement or Sponsorship of Activities, Events, or Programs\_Current Copy

## 02.23.23.05 Policy 5.1.21 Advertisement or Sponsorship of Activities, Events, or Programs\_Mark Up

# 02.23.23.06 Policy 5.1.21 Advertisement or Sponsorship of Activities, Events, or Programs\_Clean Copy

Senator Valentin: The Planning and Finance Committee presents policy 5.1.21 Advertisement or Sponsorship of Activities, Events, or Programs involving Alcohol and/or Hemp based CBD to the Senate as an information item. The major changes in this policy are the addition of hemp-based CBD products into the policy language and the addition of definitions of those products, and some structural reworking of the promotional materials section for clarity. The language has been vetted through General Counsel office. We have a couple of changes to the copy. The last sentence of the first paragraph where it reads, this policy does not apply to units promoting alcohol or substance abuse awareness education." That was changed to, "This policy does not apply to units promoting awareness of alcohol abuse and/or substance abuse." And then in the first sentence of Section 3, that ends with the phrase, "the President of the University or designee," there should be a period after that line.

## Internal Committee Reports:

## • Academic Affairs Committee: Senator Cline

Senator Cline: The Academic Affairs Committee met this evening. We are still working on the Classrooms Disruptions policy. But we have made the decision that our next policy to review will be the Oral English Proficiency policy the Sale of Institutional Materials policy, and the Solicitation of Academic Assignments policy.

Senator Horst: I did want to convey to you from Charles Edamala, he's hoping that you can have an approval and forward to the Senate the item about Financial Aid.

Senator Cline: You mean the item about the F grade? I've already informed him. So, the committee was asked to give a general endorsement of the work that they were doing as they moved towards creating a systematic process for reporting students who need an update if they've gotten an F on their final transcript. So, those of us that get those emails weeks after the semester about a student that's failed every course, when was their last participation. We have granted then our general approval. And once they get that whole plan set up, they will bring that to Senate.

Senator Horst: Okay. We can talk about it.

## Administrative Affairs and Budget Committee: Senator Nikolaou

Senator Nikolaou: The administrative Affairs and Budget Committee met this evening. We had Associate Vice President for Human Resources Janice Bonneville join us. We discussed some language change on the Academic calendar. It's going to be coming to Exec. We approved the changes in policy 3.1.1 and policy 3.2.1 which is also coming to Exec. And also 3.2.2 on Search Committees.

## • Faculty Affairs Committee: Senator Smudde

Senator Smudde: Faculty Affairs Committee this evening examined policy 3.3.11 and 3.4.8 and approved of the changes that were submitted to us from either General Counsel or from Human resources, or the provost office, respectively. And those two policies were sent over for Executive Committee review.

## • Planning and Finance Committee: Senator Valentin

Senator Valentin: The Planning and finance Committee discussed revisions to policy 6.1.40 Unmanned Aircraft and we will be continuing to review that policy. The committee began drafting its policy brief on Campus Pedestrian Vehicular Safety, which we are planning on completing next meeting.

## • Rules Committee: Senator Blum

Senator Blum: We are enthused about all the bylaws revisions. Rules Committee is having a great time. We discussed in prep for Article II Section 5. We went through some of Exec's remarks and completed Article VI. And that was honestly as far as we got. Major issues and major thoughts. I believe Article VI is ready for the Executive Committee. I went through each of the things, and I will prepare tomorrow a response and the changes we made in response to that.

#### **Communications**

None.

## Adjournment or Hard Stop 9:30 p.m.

Motion by Senator Cline, seconded by Senator Pancrazio, to adjourn. The motion was unanimously approved.

## 2022-23 ACADEMIC SENATE ROSTER Wednesday March 8, 2023

	Senate
Name	Attendance
Blair, Cobi	1
Blanco Lobo, German	1
Blum, Craig	1

Bonnell, Angela	1
Carney, Lania	1
Cline, Lea	1
Duffy, Alex	1
Ebikhumi, Ash (student trustee)*	0
Fulton, Megan	1
Garrahy, Deb - EXCUSED	0
Gillan, Aneel	1
Graham, Rhiannon	1
Gudding, Gabriel	0
Hammond, Tom	1
Harpel, Tammy	1
Helms, Jeff	1
Hofstetter, Paige	1
Hollywood, Mary	1
Holmes, Jimmy	1
Horst, Martha	1
Hurd, Amy*	1
Johnson, Levester* - EXCUSED	0
Larson, Ethan	1
Lucey, Tom	1
Mainieri, Tracy	1
McHale, John	1
McLauchlan, Craig*	1
Midha, Vishal	1
Miller, Chloe	0
Monk, Eduardo	1
Myers, Braxton	1
Nichols, Wade	1
Nikolaou, Dimitrios	1
Novotny, Nancy	1
Palmer, Carl	1
Palmer, Stuart	1
Pancrazio, Jim	1
Peters, Steve	1
Rardin, Nate	1
Samhan, Bahae	1
Schmeiser, Benjamin	1
Setnan, Matthew James	1
Smith, Zoe	1
Smudde, Pete	1

Stephens, Daniel*	1
Tarhule, Aondover* - EXCUSED	0
Torry, Mike	1
Valentin, Rick	1
Walsh, Patrick	1
Wielgosz, Alexander	0
Wilburn-Johnson, Jayden	1
Wollard, Jason	1
Wollard, Justin	1
Woodard, Jewel	0
Yazedjian, Ani*	1
Vacant - 1 CAS SCI Faculty	0
Vacant - 1 CAS SS Faculty	0
Vacant - 1 COB Faculty	0
Vacant - 1 COE Faculty	0
Vacant - 1 Faculty associate	0
Vacant - 1 Student senator	0
Miller, Jean (dean rep)*	1
Branoff, Ted (chairperson rep)*	1
QUORUM (VOTING) (28) (*=NV)	43